# The College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong 香港牙科醫學院



1999-2000 Annual Report

# The College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong

Room 902, Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Jockey Club Building 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road Aberdeen Hong Kong SAR Tel: (852) 2871 8866 Fax: (852) 2873 6731

### Secretariat

Dr Anthony S K Tse
Honorary Secretary
Room 1008 Asia Standard Tower
59-65 Queen's Road Central
Central
Hong Kong SAR
Tel: (852) 2522 8155 Fax: (852) 2522 8579

### Contents

		Page
1.	PRESIDENT'S REPORT	2
2.	REPORT OF THE COUNCIL AND COMMITTEES	
	Council	4
	<b>Education &amp; Examinations Committee</b>	5
	1. Specialty Board in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery	6
	2. Specialty Board in Orthodontics	7
	3. Specialty Board in Paediatric Dentistry	7
	4. Subcommittee on Education and Examinations for GDP	8
	5. Continuing Medical Education Subcommittee	9
	6. Second International Congress of HKAM	11
	Membership Committee	12
	IT Committee	12
	Scientific Meetings Committee	13
3.	TREASURER'S REPORT	14
4.	AUDITORS' REPORT	15
5.	COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES AND SUBCOMMITTEES	23
6.	PANELS OF EXAMINERS FOR CONJOINT EXAMINATIONS	26
7.	MEMBERSHIP DIRECTORY 2000	27
8.	ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	28

### PRESIDENT'S REPORT

First of all I would like to thank all councillors and committee members for their tireless efforts to fulfill the tasks and the goals for our College. I also thank all fellows for their support.

The Conjoint Examinations with the Royal College in Edinburgh are running very smoothly, and at this stage comprises of four examinations: Intermediate • Examination/Membership in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery, Orthodontics and Paediatric Dentistry respectively and Membership in General Dental Surgery. It is my sincere hope that the collaboration with the Royal College of Edinburgh can be extended to the restorative field, once the training pathway for the specialties in various field of adult dentistry have been established. It is indeed a disappointment that the training pathway for those specialties have not been finalized yet, but my hope is that there will be good news on this issue in your President's next report.

The vocational training of General Dental Practitioners has been approved. After successfully completing the training the candidates can be admitted as Fellows of the College of Dental Surgeons, but not of the Academy.

The first CME cycle has been successfully completed by practically all fellows. To further facilitate for the fellows to get the required CME points, the College has increased its own involvement in arranging continuous educational activities, by adding a Scientific

Spring Event to the scientific programme at the AGM held in the fall. The new spring

event held in HKAM Building in mid-May attracted more than 200 participants. A

special thank to our own fellows who willingly contributed to the programme together

with the overseas speaker Dr Andersson. The College is contributing to the programme

of the Second International Congress of the HKAM by providing five locals and one

overseas speaker. On Sunday November 5th, we have the pleasure to have one of the

world's most gifted clinician sharing his expertise and experience in the area of ultra thin

veneers, which is common treatment option for many of our patients here in Hong Kong.

It seems that the College goes from strength to strength. The service to its fellow has

improved by offering more activities, and by adding a full-time secretary, Miss Ada Houn,

to ensure efficient service.

I wish the College a successful year to come. It has been a privilege to serve you during

the past years.

Professor Urban Hägg

President

October, 2000

3

### REPORT OF THE COUNCIL & COMMITTEES

### Council

The College Council consists of 15 Councillors and it held a total of nine meetings from January 2000 to November 2000.

President Profit

1st Vice-President Dr B

2nd Vice-President Dr R

Honorary Secretary Dr A

Honorary Treasurer Dr J

Censor-In-Chief Dr J

Councillors Dr C

Professor Urban Hägg Dr Bill S W Yan Dr Roch K H Lee Dr Anthony S K Tse Dr Joseph C Y Chan Dr John Y K Ling Dr Gordon K C Chiu

Dr Michael N Y Chau Professor W I R Davies Dr David O'Donnell Dr Bakr Rabie

Dr Jeffrey Y S Tsang Dr Eddie C K Yau Dr William C W Yung

### **EDUCATION & EXAMINATIONS COMMITTEE**

Chairman:

Dr Bill Yan (Specialty Board in OMFS)

Secretary:

Dr Joseph Chan (Specialty Board in Paediatric Dentistry)

Members :

Dr Roch Lee (CME Sub-committee)

Dr John Ling (Specialty Board in Orthodontics)

Dr Jeffrey Tsang (Council representative)

Dr Tak Chow (GDP Sub-committee)

Dr William Yung (Prosthodontics representative Dr Gordon Chiu (Periodontics representative) Dr Gary Cheung (Endodontics representative)

- 1. The Committee had three meetings during the year to receive reports from the Specialty Boards of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery (OMFS), Orthodontics and Paediatric Dentistry; as well as the CME and GDP Sub-committees.
- 2. Examination plans of specialties for this year and up to 2003 were being worked out. This year there will be Conjoint Examinations with the Edinburgh College in OMFS and MGDS in November.
- 3. Submissions for new specialties were received from Prosthodontics, Periodontics and Endodontics. Drs William Yung, Gordon Chiu and Gary Cheung were invited to attend the EC meetings. Their respective Guideline for Accreditation and Training as well as Application for Training Institute Status are being discussed with a view to submit to the College Council and the Academy for endorsement by the end of the year.
- 4. The First CME Cycle report of the College was submitted and endorsed by the Academy.
- 5. Application for approval of the new dental unit at Nethersole Hospital at Tai Po as a training centre for Vocational Training of GDP was received.
- 6. Trainees were asked to register with the College. As from the year 2001, basic trainee will have to pay HK\$500 as annual fee, and higher trainees after the passing of intermediate examination will have to pay HK\$3000 as admission fee and HK\$1000 as annual fee.

Dr Bill Yan Chairman, Education Committee

### 1. Specialty Board in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery

Chairman :

Dr Bill S W Yan

Secretary :

Dr Eddie C K Yau

Members :

Dr K K Chau

Prof. L K Cheung Dr Roch K H Lee

- No Conjoint Examination was conducted in 1999. The Second diet of Conjoint Examination with the Membership in Oral surgery of the Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh is scheduled to be held on the week commencing 27<sup>th</sup> November 2000. Professor H Tideman is appointed to be the Chief Examiner in this diet.
- Two Higher trainees were accepting their additional training in order to fulfill requirements for Fellowship of the College and Academy under By-law 16. The Exit Assessment in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery is scheduled to be held in March 2001.
- The examination schedule for the Specialty of Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery for the next three years has been formulated. The inaugural diet of Exit Examination is scheduled to be held in November 2001.

Dr Bill Yan Chairman

### 2. Specialty Board in Orthodontics

During the year 1999-2000 the following issues were discussed and dealt with:

- The third Conjoint Membership Examination in Orthodontics with our sister College the Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh was held from 22<sup>nd</sup> November to 27<sup>th</sup> November 1999. Three out of six candidates passed Section A and all 13 candidates passed Section B of the examination. The candidates came from Hong Kong, Australia, Japan and Singapore.
- The MOrth Medal in Hong Kong was awarded to Dr. Ricky WONG Wing Kit, being the best performing candidate in the 1999 diet of examination
- The specialty board have requested all trainees to complete their registration with the board and to take appropriate examinations and clinical training.
- The specialty board will be conducting an Exit Assessment at the end of the year 2000.

- Exit examination will be scheduled for those trainees who have completed their higher training in 2001.
- A Conjoint examination of Section A MOrth with the Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh is scheduled on 4-5 December 2000.
- ☐ Conjoint Section B MOrthRCSEd/Intermediate FCDSHK examination in Orthodontics has been scheduled in November 2001 and 2002.

Dr John Ling Chairman

### 3. Specialty Board in Paediatric Dentistry

The following issues were discussed and dealt with during the year 1999-2000.

- The second Conjoint Examination in Paediatric Dentistry with the Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh was held in November. There were five candidates sitting for the Part I examination and there were two candidates sitting for the Part II examination. All candidates were successful.
- The 1st Exit Assessment in Paediatric Dentistry was held on 27th March 2000. The only candidate Dr CHAN Chi Lap, Samuel was successful and is admitted as a fellow in the specialty of Paediatric Dentistry.
- The Specialty Board processed and approved one application for higher training in Australia.
- The Specialty Board conducted a site visit of one dental practice for approval as suitable for higher training.
- The President and Vice President of the Hong Kong Society of Paediatric Dentistry were invited to be members of the Specialty Board.

Dr Joseph Chan Chairman

## 4. Subcommittee on Education and Examinations for General Dental Practitioners (SEEGDP)

The Vocation Training Pathway in Primary Dental Care has now been in place for 18 months. Three examinations of Membership in General Dental Surgery had been held in Hong Kong. There are now 16 local dentists who obtained their MGDS qualification in Hong Kong.

Announcements of the MGDS examination were sent to all general practitioners on the Dentists List published by the Hong Kong Government and promulgated in the Newsletter of the Hong Kong Dental Association. The SEEGDP held an orientation seminar in April 2000 to advise general dental practitioners on the requirements and preparation for the MGDS examinations. 13 candidates were registered for the Part I of the examination and another 7 were registered for the Part II.

The Subcommittee organised regular revision seminars for the Part I candidates to cover the relevant topics as extensively as possible. Joint seminars were also organised in collaboration with the local committee of the Australasian College of Dental Surgeons for candidates preparing for FRACDS examination, and the Dental Faculty of University of Hong Kong for candidates preparing for the Postgraduate Diploma in General Dental Surgery (PDipGDS). An additional two 1-day seminars where held at weekends on 'Dental Materials Science and Clinical Applications' by Professor Trevor Burke of University of Birmingham and 'Applied Basic Sciences' on clinical anatomy and physiology by Dr James Newton of University of Dundee.

The next diet of conjoint MGDS examination will be conducted in November 20 - 24, 2000 involving written examination, clinical and oral examination and clinic visitation.

Five MGDS holders volunteered as mentors to guide candidates on all aspects of examination preparation including advice on log dairy cases and improvements of clinics.

The Subcommittee supervised continuing professional education activities of MGDS holders. These include journal study clubs with regular meetings, product and equipment evaluation and research (PEER). A couple of new restorative dental products had been evaluated according to an approved protocol. The SEEGDP also identified and assessed training centres for MGDS holders to allow them to gain further experience in the management of complex cases and medically compromised patients requiring special oral health care.

The Subcommittee would like to thank the Education Committee and the Council of the College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong for their support during the past year.

Dr TW Chow Chairman

### 5. Continuing Medical Education Subcommittee

### Composition of the CME Subcommittee :

The following Fellows of our College are being appointed as members of the CME Subcommittee:

Name of Fellow	Post	
Dr. K.H. LEE	Chairman	
Dr. Bill S.W. YAN	Ex-officio Member	
Dr. Tak Kun CHOW	Member	
Dr. Kenneth HUI	Hon. Secretary	
Dr. Alec TAM	Member	
Dr. Kwan Yat ZEE	Member	

Dr. Bill Yan, being the Chairman of the Education Committee since early this year, is our new Ex-officio Member. His coming to our Subcommittee further strengthened our team-effort.

I need to express my sincere gratitude to Prof. Urban Hagg, previously our Exofficio Member, for his unequivocal support. Moreover, I must take this opportunity again to thank Dr. Gary Cheung, who resigned from our Subcommittee in August 1999 due to his already heavy and extensive commitments. His constructive and positive contributions to our Subcommittee should be acknowledged.

Dr. Alec Tam renewed his 2-year term of service commencing in April, 2000. Dr. Zee Kwan Yat is our newly recruited member whose term of office also commenced the same month. With a new composition in our Subcommittee, we are looking forward to serve our College in general, and our Fellows in particular.

### 2. First CME Cycle from 1.1.1997 to 31.12.1999:

Initially there were a total of 121 Fellows starting off their CME activities belonging to this cycle. However, during the course of the 3-year period, 18 Fellows submitted their respective formal letter of resignation from the College/Academy, with reasons such as retirement or practising overseas.

The remaining 103 Fellows who started the CME cycle in 1.1.1997, 101 of them (98%) have met up with the Academy requirement to obtain 90 CME credits or more. Yearly statements (at the conclusion of the first CME cycle) have been sent to each and every one of them accordingly. A *Certificate of CME for Specialists* has been issued by Hong Kong Academy of Medicine to all those Fellows who complied with the CME requirement.

The names of the two Fellows who failed to comply with the CME requirement have been reported to the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine. Their Fellowships have been terminated by the Academy.

### 3. CME Cycle from 1.1,1998 to 31.12.2000 :

A total of 8 Fellows fall within this group, the following table is a summary of their CME scores:

CME Credits	No. of Fellows	Percentage of Fellows *
Above 90	5	62.5%
60 to 90	2	25%
59 or below	1	12.5%

Reminder-letters have been sent to the three Fellows to urge them to comply with the CME requirement by the end of this year.

### 4. CME cycle from 1.7.1998 to 30.6.2001:

A total of 12 Fellows fall within this group, a second yearly statement has been sent to each and every one of them accordingly. The following table is a summary of their CME scores:

CME Credits	No. of Fellows	Percentage of Fellows *
Above 90	4	33.3%
60 to 90	3	25%
30 to 59	2	16.6%
1 to 29	3	25%
0	0	0

### 5. CME Cycle from 1.1.1999 to 31.12.2001:

A total of 26 Fellows fall within this group, the following table is a summary of their CME activities so far:

CME Credits	No. of Fellows	Percentage of Fellows *
Above 60	12	46.2%
30 to 60	4	15.4%
1 to 29	7	26.9%
0	3	11.5%

### 6. CME Cycle from 1.1.2000 to 31.12.2002:

4 Fellows belong to this group. Their CME scores so far can be summarized in the following table:

CME Credits	No. of Fellows	Percentage of Fellows *
above 30	0	0
1 to 30	4	100%
0	0	0

<sup>\*</sup> Remarks: all percentages quoted above are corrected up to the end of September, 2000.

Dr. K.H. LEE Chairman

### 5. Second International Congress

- Altogether 5 Fellows were nominated to participate as speakers and we have contributed our Scientific Guest Lecturer Dr Sverker Toreskog as a Plenary Speaker.
- All abstracts were finalized and programme for presentation of each lecturer was also fixed (including Dr Sverker Toreskog).
- 3 Summary of the List of Lecturers and Topics:
  - i) Dr Sverker Toreskog

3<sup>rd</sup> November 2000 (Friday)

3.00 pm to 4.00 pm

Plenary Speaker on MINIMAL INVASIVE SURGERY Topic: Some Recent Advances in Dental Esthetics and Ethics

ii) Professor L K Cheung

"Recent Advances in Medical Dingnosis"

Topic: Tissue Engineering in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery

iii) Dr Jeffrey Tsang

"Continuous Professional Development"

Topic: A Review of the Continuous Professional Development and Its Direction of Future Move in Preserving the Quality of Service of the Dental Profession

iv) Dr Daniel Fang

"Effective Primary Care"

Topic: Something to Smile About: Current Advances in Primary Dental Care

v) Dr Edward Lo

"Quality Assurance in Medical Practice"

Topic: Development of Quality Assurance in Dentistry

vi) Dr William Yung
"Recent Specialty Advances"
Topic: Recent Advances in Oral Rehabilitation

Dr William Yung College Representative in the Organizing Committee

### MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE

- Guidelines for conferment of Honorary Fellowship of the College were discussed and adopted by Council. Honorary fellows should be proposed and seconded by 2 Council members and the deadline for submission for screening by the Membership Committee should not be later than June of each year.
- If Six new members were admitted in a Conjoint Ceremony on 13th November 2000 in the dental specialty of Primary Dental Care and Paediatric Dentistry.
- Seven other new members will be admitted at the College Annual General Meeting.
- All unsuccessful applicants for membership/fellowship were referred to their specific specialty boards or sub-committees for detailed advice.

Dr John Ling Censor In Chief

### IT Committee

College Representative

Dr Eddie C K Yau

Web Master

Dr Loi Ming Cheung

CDSHK web site

cdshk.org

The domain name of our College's web site has been registered, and Dr Cheung Loi Ming was appointed as web master of our College web site. Our web page will soon be inaugurated.

### SCIENTIFIC COMMITTEE

The Scientific Committee is happy to report two successful scientific events in the year The first is "The Spring Scientific Meeting" and the social events held between the 19<sup>th</sup> and 21<sup>st</sup> May 2000. The main theme of the scientific program was "Multidisciplinary Approach to the Management of Tooth Replacement". speaker from Sweden, Dr Bernt Andersson, an implant specialist with a great deal of experience in the field of implantology, presented superb clinical cases supported by Other local speakers, as shown in the attached program, shared their scientific research. clinical and research experience with the participants. The interdisciplinary manner of presentations and the clinical nature of the lectures attracted a great deal of participants. The meeting attracted more than 200 participants, 25 of which were 5<sup>th</sup> year dental The dental students were invited to attend at no cost to help familiarize them In addition to the scientific with the College and its role in their very near future. program, an exhibition to introduce the "Training Pathways and Examination Style" for all specialities was offered in the form of poster presentation and log books for clinical A dental exhibition was successfully arranged as well. case presentations.

The spring social event was hosted by the President of the College, Professor Hägg, at the Shek O Country Club. A memorable evening, listening to the wonderful opera singing of Ms Grace Chan accompanied by the beautiful sounds of solo Chelo player Miss Fong. This meeting set the standard for the upcoming scientific meeting "The 7<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Meeting" of the College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong. The main theme of that meeting is "Ultra Thin Bonded Porcelain Veneers" by Dr Sverker Toreskog.

As the Chairman of the Scientific Committee, I would like to thank the previous Chairman Dr Gordon Chiu for his help. My gratitude goes to all the members of the organizing committee for both events on their constant support. Special thanks goes to Dr Anthony Tse and Miss Ada for all their help in making these events a success.

Dr Bakr M Rabie Chairman

### TREASURER'S REPORT

For the year ended 31st March 2000, our College has a net surplus of HK\$281,249. On the balance sheet, we have HK\$1,489,220 in our bank accounts.

As with previous years, our major source of income was from membership and subscription fee which accounted for 67% of our income. Other sources of income were the 6<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Meeting, Conjoint Examinations with the Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh, Exit Assessments and bank interest.

Major expenditure for this year were legal fees for revision of our Memorandum and Articles of Association, management fee for the College Chamber, salaries for staff, government rates, postage, stationery and printing.

I wish to take this opportunity to thank Messrs. Li, Tang, Chen & Co., our Honorary Auditor for auditing our accounts.

Dr. Joseph C.Y. Chan Honorary Treasurer



Certified Public Accountants 10/F Sun Hung Kai Centre 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Te l :: (852) 2827 8663 Fax :: (852) 2827 5086 E-mail : info@litangchen.com

# HONORARY AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE COLLEGE OF DENTAL SURGEONS OF HONG KONG (incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

I have audited the financial statements on pages 4 to 9 which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

### RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF COUNCILLORS AND THE HONORARY AUDITOR

The Companies Ordinance requires the councillors to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

I am engaged to form an independent opinion, based on my audit, on those statements and to report my opinion to you.

### BASIS OF OPINION

I conducted my audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the councillors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the college's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

I planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which I considered necessary in order to provide me with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming my opinion I also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements. I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

### **OPINION**

In my opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the college's affairs as at 31<sup>st</sup> March, 2000 and of its surplus for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Ordinance.

Li Ka Cheung, Eric Certified Public Accountant, Honorary Auditor.

Hong Kong, EKCL/MPCL/RCMC:pn

# THE COLLEGE OF DENTAL SURGEONS OF HONG KONG BALANCE SHEET AS AT $31^{\rm st}$ MARCH, 2000

	<u>Note</u>	2000 HK\$	1999 HK\$
NON-CURRENT ASSETS	ş		
Fixed assets	2(c) & 5	175,285	219,965
CURRENT ASSETS			•
Deposit paid Inventories Prepayment Cash and cash equivalents	2(d) & 6 7	29,302 799 1,489,220 1,519,321	5,000 29,302 - 978,687 1,012,989
Deduct: CURRENT LIABILITY			
Accrued expenses		186,403	6,000
Net current assets		1,332,918	1,006,989
Net assets		1,508,203	1,226,954
Representing:			
ACCUMULATED FUNDS	8	1,508,203	1,226,954

The financial statements on pages 4 to 9 were approved by the council on

1 NOV 2000

# THE COLLEGE OF DENTAL SURGEONS OF HONG KONG INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED $31^{\rm ST}$ MARCH, 2000

	Note	2000 HK\$	1999 HK\$
SUBSCRIPTIONS AND FEES	3	354,100	484,000
OTHER REVENUE	4	<u>174,967</u> 529,067	<u>328,737</u> 812,737
STAFF COST		(47,458)	(¥)
DEPRECIATION		(61,692)	(58,289)
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES		(138,668)	(161,611)
NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR TRANSFERRED TO ACCUMULATED FUND	8	281,249	592,837

The only component of the statement of recognised gains and losses is the net surplus for the year.

### THE COLLEGE OF DENTAL SURGEONS OF HONG KONG

### NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### 1. STATUS OF THE COLLEGE

The college was incorporated in Hong Kong on 23<sup>rd</sup> February, 1993 as a company limited by guarantee. Every member of the college undertakes to contribute, if required, an amount not exceeding HK\$100 to the assets of the college in the event of its being wound up.

The college is engaged in promoting for the public benefit the advancement of knowledge in the field of dental surgery and its associated subjects and promoting training and research in dental surgery.

### 2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

### a) Basis of preparation:

The financial statements are prepared under the historical convection, and in accordance with all applicable Statements of Standard Accounting Practice and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

### b) Revenue recognition:

Income from subscription and entrance fees is recognised on an accruals basis.

Income from meeting, course and examination is recognised upon completion of services provided.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis.

### c) Depreciation on fixed assets:

Fixed assets are depreciated on the straight line method at the following rate:-

College gowns	20% per annum
Leasehold improvement	20% per annum
Furniture and fixtures	20% per annum
Office equipment	20% per annum

### d) Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated by using the weighted average method. Net realisable value is determined by management based on prevailing market conditions.

### e) Related parties:

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly to control the other party, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

### THE COLLEGE OF DENTAL SURGEONS OF HONG KONG

### NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### 2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

### f) Cash equivalents:

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash without notice and which were within three months of maturity when acquired.

### 3. SUBSCRIPTIONS AND FEES

	2000 HK\$	1999 HK\$
Members' subscriptions Members' entrance fees	304,100 50,000	314,000 170,000
	354,100	484,000
4. OTHER REVENUE		
	2000 HK\$	<u>1999</u> HK\$
Surplus on scientific meeting Surplus on revision course for Conjoint MGDS examination Surplus on Conjoint MGDS, MRoedD, MOrth and	96,724 2,038	137,970
Surplus on Conjoint MGDS, MPaedD, MOrth and MOS examination Surplus on Exit Assessment Bank interest Donation received	25,848 21,000 29,357	91,838 - 22,541 76,388
	174,967	328,737

# THE COLLEGE OF DENTAL SURGEONS OF HONG KONG NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### 5. FIXED ASSETS

6.

	College gowns HK\$	Leasehold improvement	Furniture and fixtures HK\$	Office equipment	Total HK\$
Cost: Balance at 31.3.1999 Additions during the year Balance at 31.3.2000	38,440	193,100	43,511 5,934 49,445	17,847 11,078 28,925	292,898 
Accumulated depreciation: Balance at 31.3.1999 Charge for the year Balance at 31.3.2000	22,042 7,398 29,440	38,620 38,620 77,240	8,702 9,889 18,591	3,569 5,785 9,354	72,933 61,692 134,625
Net book value at 31.3.2000	9,000	115,860	30,854	19,571	175,285
Net book value at 31.3.1999	16,398	154,480	34,809	14,278	219,965
INVENTORIES					
				2000 HK\$	1999 HK\$
College ties and crests				29,302	29,302

The cost of inventories recognised in the income and expenditure account during the year amounted to HK\$Nil (1999: HK\$550).

### 7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

	<u>2000</u> HK\$	1999 HK\$
Time deposit with a bank Cash at bank	424,805 1,064,415	407,124 571,563
	1,489,220	978,687

### THE COLLEGE OF DENTAL SURGEONS OF HONG KONG

### NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### 8. ACCUMULATED FUNDS

	<u>2000</u> HK\$	1999 HK\$
Balance brought forward Net surplus for the year	1,226,954 281,249	634,117 592,837
Balance carried forward	1,508,203	1,226,954

### 9. TAXATION

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as, in the opinion of the councillors, the college is not deemed to be chargeable to profits tax under section 24(1) of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

### 10. COUNCILLORS' REMUNERATION: HK\$Nil (1999: HK\$Nil).

### 11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

During the year, the college had the following related party transaction in the normal course of business.

HK\$	
36,0	000
)	000 36,0

In the opinion of the councillors, the above-mentioned related party transaction was carried out on normal commercial terms.

### 12. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The presentation and classification of items in the accounts have been changed due to the adoption of the requirements of SSAP 1 (revised) "Presentation of financial statements". As a result, additional line items have been included on the face of the income and expenditure account and balance sheet as required by SSAP 1 (revised), such as analysis of expenses and cash and cash equivalents. Comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.

### (For management purpose only)

### THE COLLEGE OF DENTAL SURGEONS OF HONG KONG

### INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31<sup>ST</sup> MARCH, 2000

	2000 HK\$	1999 HK\$
INCOME		
Membership and subscription fees Surplus on scientific meeting Surplus on revision course for Conjoint	354,100 96,72 <b>4</b>	484,000 137,970
MGDS examination Surplus on Conjoint MGDS, MPaedD, MOrth	2,038	<b>~</b>
and MOS examination Surplus on Exit Assessment	25,848 21,000	91,838
Bank interest Donation received	29,357	22,541 76,388
	529,067	812,737
Deduct: EXPENDITURE		
Repairs and maintenance Rates	1,099 13,009	-
Electricity Deficit on HKAM First International	1,254	:###
Congress Salaries and allowances	47,458	13,360
Postage Stationery and printing	7,482 16,902	3,954 24,928
Souvenir and gifts Function expenses	7,074	12,741 2,149
Bank charges Secretarial fee	360 2,265	240 2,265
Depreciation Telephone and fax	61,692 4,359	58,289 2,047
Travelling Legal and professional fee	421 12,443	173 63,754
Management fee	72,000 247,818	36,000 219,900
NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR		
TRANSFERRED TO ACCUMULATED FUNDS	281,249	592,837

### **COMMITTEES & SUBCOMMITTEES 1999-2000**

### **Education & Examinations Committee**

Chairman

Dr Bill S W Yan

Secretary

Dr Joseph C Y Chan.

Members

Dr Roch K H Lee Dr John Y K Ling Dr Jeffrey Y S Tsang

Dr T W Chow

Dr William C W Yung Dr Gordon K C Chiu Dr Gary S P Cheung

There are 3 specialty boards, 2 subcommittee and 3 *ad hoc* groups under the Education and Examinations Committee.

### 1. Specialty Board in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery

Chairman

Dr Bill S W Yan

Secretary

Dr Eddie C K Yau

Members

Dr K K Chau

Professor L K Cheung

Dr K H Lee

### 2. Specialty Board in Orthodontics

Chairman

Dr John Y K Ling

Secretary

Dr Michael N Y Chau

Members

Dr Peter C K Chung

Professor Michael S Cooke (1997-2000)

Professor Urban Hägg Dr David W C Lau Dr Alec K C Tam

Dr T C Wong (1997-2000)

Dr Bakr Rabie (from 2000-2002)

Dr George Wong Dr George Wang

Ad hoc Group in Orthodontics

Members

Professor Urban Hägg

Dr Michael N Y Chau Dr Peter C K Chung Dr John Y K Ling

### 3. Specialty Board in Paediatric Dentistry

Chairman

Dr Joseph C Y Chan

Secretary Members Dr David O'Donnell Dr Kenneth K K Hui

Professor Nigel M King

Dr Albert MP Lee

Professor Stephen H Y Wei

Dr Philip H W Poon Dr Kitty M Y Hse

### 4. Subcommittee on Education and Examinations for GDP

Chairman

Dr T W Chow

Members

Dr Gary S P Cheung

Dr Raymond K M Lee

Dr K Y Zee

### 5. Continuing Medical Education Subcommittee

Chairman

Dr Roch K H Lee

Secretary

Dr Kenneth K K Hui

Members

Dr T W Chow

Dr Alec K C Tam

Dr K Y Zee

### 6. Ad hoc Group on Periodontology

Convenor

Dr Gordon K C Chiu

Members

Professor WIR Davies

Dr Esmonde F Corbet

Dr K W Zee

### 7. Ad hoc Group on Prosthodontics

Convenor

Dr William C W Yung

Members

Dr T W Chow

Dr Robin W C Chung

Dr L H Kei

Dr John Dyson (observer from HK Prosthetic Society)

### **Membership Committee**

Chairman

Dr John Y K Ling

Secretary

Dr L H Kei

Members

Dr Gary S P Cheung (resigned)

Dr T K Chow Dr Esmonde Corbet Dr Albert M P Lee Dr Edward W H To

### **Scientific Meetings Committee**

Spring Scientific Meeting

Chairman

Professor Urban Hagg

Co-chairman

Dr Bakr Rabie

Secretary

Dr Anthony S K Tse

Treasurer

Dr Joseph C Y Chan Dr Joseph Kwan

Members

Dr Joseph Kwan
Dr Jeffrey Tsang

Dr Jeffrey Isang
Dr William Yung

Annual Scientific Meeting

Chairman

Professor Urban Hägg

Co-Chairman

Dr Bakr Rabie

Secretary

Dr Anthony S K Tse

Treasurer

Dr David O'Donnell

Members

Dr Jeffrey Tsang

Dr William Yung

Mr W Robinson

### **IT Committee**

College Representative

Dr Eddie Yau C K

# PANELS OF EXAMINERS FOR CONJOINT EXAMINATIONS 2000

# Regional Panel of Examiners for Conjoint MOrth RCSEd and FCDSHK (Intermediate) Examination in Orthodontics

Dr Bakr Rabie (Hong Kong) Dr Nabil Samman (Hong Kong)

### Regional Panel of Examiners for Conjoint MPaedD RCSEd and FCDSHK (Intermediate) Examination in Paediatric Dentistry

Dr Joseph C Y Chan (Hong Kong)
Dr David O'Donnell (Hong Kong)
Dr Richard P Widmer (Australia)
Professor Nigel King (Chief Examiner, HK)
Professor Minoru Nakata (Japan)

### Regional Panel of Examiners for Conjoint Membership of General Dental Surgery MGDS RCSEd

Dr Irene Brooks (Edinburgh)

Dr Joseph C Y Chan (Hong Kong)

Dr Gary S P Cheung (Hong Kong)

Dr T W Chow (Hong Kong)

Dr David Croswaithe (Edinburgh)

Dr Roch K H Lee (Hong Kong)

Dr William C W Yung (Hong Kong)

Professor L P Samaranayake (Hong Kong)

### **MEMBERSHIP DIRECTORY 2000**

Number	Name
Fellows	
2	Dr AW Ming Chit, Andrew
4	Dr Martine Claude BOISSON
5	Dr Eric Francis CARTER
6	Dr CHAN Lap Chun, Clement
7	Dr CHAN Man, Denis
8	Dr CHAN Fook Yee, Franklin
9	Dr CHAN Cho Yee, Joseph
10	Dr CHAN Sai Kwing
11	Dr CHAN See Ching
12	Dr CHAN Wing Ho
13	Dr CHAN Yuk Hing, Deborah
14	Dr CHAU Kai Kin
15	Dr CHENG Chi Fung, Jason
16	Dr CHENG Wai Cheong, Warren
17	Dr CHEUK Wan Ping, Penny
19 20	Dr CHEUNG Shun Pan, Gary
22	Dr CHEUNG Big Chu, Gloria
23	Prof CHEUNG Lim Kwong
24	Dr CHEUNG Ning Hoi
26	Dr CHIEN Tai How, William
27	Dr CHIU Kai Chung, Gordon Dr CHOW Kiang Cheong
28	Dr CHOW Tak Kun
29	Dr CHOW Tak Wah
30	Dr CHUNG Wai Chung
31	Prof Robert Kingsley Francis CLARK
32	Dr Margaret Bell COMFORT
33	Prof Michael Stephen COOKE
34	Dr Esmonde Francis CORBET
35	Prof William Ian Rees DAVIES
36	Dr Andrew Paul Lakshman Henry DIAS
37	Dr FUNG Tat Him, David
39	Dr FUNG Siu Chung
40	Dr Rupert Ross GILDENHUYS
41	Prof Erik Urban Oskar HAGG
42	Dr HO Hung Fun, Albert
46	Dr HUI Kwok Kuen, Kenneth
47	Dr KEI Lee Hoi
48	Dr Nigel Martyn KING
49	Dr John KIRKWOOD

50	Dr KWAN Sai Kit, Joseph
51	Dr LEE Kin Man
52	Dr LAI Moon Cheung
53	Dr LAM Chung Yin
54	Dr LAM Pui Kwan, Pierre
55	Dr LAU Wai Chung, David
56	Dr LEE Man Piu, Albert
57	Dr LEE Kwing Hong, Roch
58	Dr LEUNG Ting On, David
59	Dr LEUNG Kei Yan, Peter
60	Dr LEUNG Tat Ming
61	Dr LI Wai Tsuen, Walter
62	Dr LIM Lum Peng
63	Dr LING Yu Kong, John
64	Dr LO Chin Man, Edward
65	Dr LO Tak Po
67	Dr LUI Wai Kay, Wilkie
68	Dr MA Sheung Sze, Nelson
69	Dr MAK Kwong Leung
70	Dr Philip Richard Holmes NEWSOME
71	Dr David O'DONNELL
72	Dr Ian ORMISTON
73	Dr POON Wing Hong, David
74	Dr Lakshman Perera SAMARANAYAKE
75	Dr Nabil SAMMAN
76	Dr Eli SCHWARZ
77	Dr SO Lai Ying, Lisa
78	Dr SO Yiu Cheong
<b>79</b>	Dr TAM Kai Chiu, Alec
80	Dr TANG Siu Chuen, Andrew
81	Dr TANG Lai King, Endarra
82	Dr TANG Nin Cheung, Bernie
83	Prof Henk TIDEMAN
84	Dr TONG Chi Kit, Antonio
85	Dr TSANG Chee Ching, Alfred
86	Dr TSANG Yick Sang, Jeffrey MBE
87	Dr TSANG Wai Ming
88	Dr TSE Siu Kwong, Anthony
89	Dr TSE Chung Ming
90	Dr TSE Lap Kee, Edmond
91	Dr TSUI Fuk Sun, Michael
92	Dr TSUI Hing Chung, Sunny
93	Dr Richard Allen WAGNER
94	Prof WEI Hon Yin, Stephen
95	Dr WONG Po Ngor, Caesar
96	Dr WONG Po Chun

97	Dr WONG Wing Kit, Ricky
98	Dr WONG Tin Chun
100	Dr WONG Yiu Kai
102	Dr YAN Sik Wing
103	Dr YAU Chuen Kam
104	Dr YEUNG Ien Sui, Felix
105	Dr YEUNG Kar Hing
106	Dr YIU Kar Yung, Cynthia
107	Dr YIU See Yue, Eric
108	Dr YUNG Ching Wah, William
109	Dr KWAN L Elizabeth
111	Dr CHUNG Chee Keung, Peter
112	Dr CHAU Ngai Ying
113	Dr NG Kin Wai, Kevin
114	Dr CHAN Yin Son, Ernest
116	Dr YEUNG Kai Yuen
117	Dr LAU Yun Wah
118	Dr Margaretha BENDEUS
119	Dr HUI Edward
120	Dr LAI Chung Sum
121	Dr LEUNG Fun Shing, Vincent
123	Dr CHEUNG Loi Ming
124	Dr CHOI Yuen Ling, Ruth
126	Dr Abou-Bakr Mahmoud RABIE
127	Dr WONG Wai Lan, Fanny
128	Dr CHAN Wai Kwok, Alex
129	Dr CHO Shiu Yin
130	Dr LAM Tak Chiu, Wiley
131	Dr TO Wai Hei, Edward
132	Dr CHAN Wainin Richard
133	Dr TSE Kit Ming
134	Dr YIP Chun Kuen
135	Dr Zee Kwan Yat
136	Dr CHAN Chi Hong
137	Dr CHAI Y. John
138	Dr CHEUNG Chui Wah, Edwin
139	Dr HO Tat Wo, Michael
140	Dr LEUNG Wai Keung
141	Dr SO Hon Ching, Frankie
142	Dr YU Sek Ho, Felix
143	Dr YUNG Kam Ming, Louisa
144	Dr CHAN Chi Lap, Samuel
145	Dr TSANG Hing Suen
146	Dr CHAN Chi Kwong, Tommy
147	Dr LI Ka Lun, Thomas
148	Dr HO Wai Mei

149	Prof Frederick C SMALES
150	Dr PANG Harling
151	Dr MAK Kwok Kwong, Gilbert
152	Dr CHIK Fu Fai
153	Dr FUNG Kin Yip, Kenneth
154	Dr HSE Mei Yin, Kitty
155	Dr LAM Siu Fei, Lisa
156	Dr LAU Chi Kai, George
157	Dr LAU Wai Sum, Eilly
158	<b>Prof Anne Sinclair McMILLAN</b>
159	Dr CHEN Kam Fai
160	Dr LIE KEN JIE Ket Phoei Ronny
161	Dr HO Fu Tak
162	Dr POON Hung Wai
163	Dr YUEN Kwok Wah
164	Dr Carlo CASTELLUCCI
165	Dr CHOW Kwok Fai
166	Dr VATTASINGH Beatric Busabakorn
167	Dr YEUNG Wai Kit, Richie
168	Dr YU Ngok Fung
169	Dr TONG Tai Wing, Winston
170	Dr MOK Ho Yuen
171	Dr WANG Shi Chi, George
172	Dr WONG Man Hei
173	Dr WONG Wai Kwong, George
Members	
1	Dr CHAN Chi Ho, Francis
2	Dr LAW Chi Ming
3	Dr LEE Kin Man
4	Dr LIU Wai Ming, Haston
5	Dr PANG Wai Yuk, Arthur

1	Dr CHAN Chi Ho, Francis
2	Dr LAW Chi Ming
3	Dr LEE Kin Man
4	Dr LIU Wai Ming, Haston
5	Dr PANG Wai Yuk, Arthur
6	Dr SIU Hin Ho
7	Dr WU Bing Chi, Patrick
8	Dr CHU Cho Shun, Frederick
9	Dr FANG Tak Sang, Daniel
10	Dr LAM Kwing Tong, Alan
11	Dr LEE Chun Kei
12	Dr LEE Pak Cheung, Patrick
13	Dr MAK Wing Yiu
14	Dr TANG Kam Kee
15	Dr YIU Bun Ka
16	Dr SAM Kim
17	Dr TA Tu An
18	Dr TRAN Chanh Dhong

20	Dr WONG May Kuen, Alice
<b>Honorary Fellows</b>	
1	Prof QUI Wei Liu
2	Prof REN Cai Nian

Dr TSANG Wai Kit

19

2 3 **Prof ZHANG Zhen Kang** 4 **Prof Sir David TODD** 5 **Mr Eric PEAKE** 6 Dr Margaret H E SEWARD 7 Prof FU Min Kui 8 **Prof Nairn H F WILSON** 9 **Prof Murray C MEIKLE** 10 **Dr James P McDONALD** 

As of 5<sup>th</sup> November 2000, there were 157 Fellows, 13 Members and 10 Honorary Fellows on the College Register. A total of 13 nominations were approved as Members by the Council during the year 2000 (Membership Committee Report).

### **ACKNOWLEDGEMENT**

The Council of the College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong would like to express our sincere thanks to the following Legal Advisers during 1999-2000.

- 1 Mr Kenneth Hoi Wah Sit
  20<sup>th</sup> Floor, Crocodile House One
  50 Connaught Road
  Central
  Hong Kong
  Tel: 2877 4990
- 2 Mr Daniel Lai Stevenson, Wong & Lai Solicitors and Notaries Room 2002-2009 20/F, Edinburgh Tower The Landmarks 15 Queen's Road Central Hong Kong

Tel: 2841 0707, 2841 0700

